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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO - UNLIMITEDJURISDICTION

vs

19

20

21

22

GENE CONDON, an individual, and on behalf of )
himself and all others similarly situated, )

12 )
PLAINTIFF, )

13 )
)

14 )
DALANDNISSAN, INC., a California )
corporation; NISSAN MOTOR ACCEPTANCE )
CORPORATION, a California corporation; )
FEDERATED MUTUALINSURANCE )

17 COMPANY, a Minnesota corporation; and DOES )
1 through 20, inclusive, )

18 )
DEFENDANTS. )

)
)
)
)
)

C060 No.: +P g ], 'iI 0 g g

UNVERIFIEDCOMPLAINTFOR
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF,
DECLARATORYRELIEF, AND:

1. Breach of Contract;
2. Fraud;
3. Negligent Misrepresentation;
4. Violation of Consumers Legal

Remedies Act, CivilCode $ 1750 et

seq.;
5. Violation of California Business and

Professions Code $ 17200, et seq.,
Unlawful Acts or Practices;

6. Violation of California Business and
Professions Code $ 17500, et seq.,
Untrue, False and/or Misleading
Advertisement; and

7. Declaratory Relief

23

25

Plaintiff GENE CONDON, an individual, and on behalf of himself and all others similarly

situated, ("Plaintiff') alleges the following on information and belief:

PARTIES

26

28

1. Plaintiff currently resides, and at all

Burlingame, County of San Mateo, State ofCalifornia.

relevant times did reside, in the City of
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2. Plaintiff is a "Buyer" as defined in Civil Code g$ 2981(c) and 1791(b), a "person" as

2 defined in 15 U.S.C. $ 1602 (d), Vehicle Code $ 470, and 12 CFR $ 226.2(22), and, a "consumer" as

3 defined in 15 U.S.C. $ 1602 (h), and 12 CFR $ 226.2(11).

3. Defendant, DALANDNISSAN, INC., a California corporation, (hereinafter referred to

5 as "SELLER" or "Defendant" ) is, and at all relevant times herein was, engaged in the business of

6 buying, repairing and re-selling used vehicles to the general public, and, taking vehicles in trade. As

7 such, SELLER was a "Dealer" as defined in the Vehicle Code $ 285, and was therefore required by

8 Vehicle Code $ 11800 to be licensed by the California Department of Motor Vehicles ("DMV").

9 SELLER maintained its principal place of business in the City of Millbrae, County of San Mateo,

10 State of California.

4. Defendant, NISSAN MOTOR ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION, California

12 Corporation (hereinafter referred to as "HOLDER"or "Defendant" ) is, and at all relevant times herein

13 was, doing business in California, including San Mateo County. HOLDER is, and at all relevant times

14 herein was, a financial institution engaged in the business of holding conditional sale contracts and

15 collecting payments made by consumers pursuant to such contracts.

16 5. Defendant FEDERATED MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY, a Minnesota

17 corporation, (hereinafter referred to as "SURETY") is, and at all relevant times herein was, doing

18 business in California, including San Mateo County. SURETY is, and at all relevant times herein was,

19 the surety on the dealer's bond ¹9236828, in the amount of $50,000.00, which SELLER maintained,

20 as required pursuant to Vehicle Code $ 11710.

21 6. At all relevant times herein, SELLER was a retail seller as defined in Civil Code $

22 2981(b) and CivilCode $ 1791(1).

23 7. Plaintiff is ignorant of the true names and capacities, whether corporate, partnership,

24 associate, individual or otherwise, of Defendants sued herein as DOES 1 through 20, inclusive, and

25 therefore, pursuant to the provisions of CCP f 474, designates them by such fictitious names. Plaintiff

26 is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendants DOES 1 through 20 are in some

27 manner responsible for acts, occurrences, and transactions set forth herein and are legally liable to

28
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1 Plaintiff. Plaintiff will seek leave of Court to amend this Complaint to allege the true names and

2 capacities when they become known.

AGENCY

At all relevant times herein, each Defendant, whether actually or fictitiously named,

5 was the principal, agent or employee of each other Defendant, and in acting as such principal, or

6 within the course and scope of such employment or agency, took some part in the acts and omissions

7 hereinafter set forth by reason of which each Defendant is liable to Plaintiff for the relief prayed for

8 herein.

9. When reference in this complaint is made to any act or omission of a defendant

10 corporation, company, association, business entity, or partnership, such allegation shall be deemed to

11 mean that the defendant and its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, or representatives did or

12 authorized such act or omission while engaged in the management, direction, or control of the affairs

13 ofdefendants and while acting within the scope and course of their duties.

14 10. When reference in this complaint is made to any act or omission of defendants, such

15 allegation shall be deemed to mean the act or omission of each defendant acting individually and

16 jointly with the other named defendants.

17 11. At all relevant times, each defendant knew or realized that the other defendants were

18 engaging in, or planned to engage in, the violations of law alleged in this complaint. Knowing or

19 realizing that other defendants were engaging in such unlawful conduct, each defendant nevertheless

20 facilitated the commission of those unlawful acts. Each defendant intended to, and did, encourage,

21 facilitate, or assist in the commission of the unlawful acts, and thereby aided and abetted the other

22 defendants in the unlawful conduct.

23 12. Each Defendant ratified the wrongful conduct of each other, its agents and/or

24 employees, accepted the benefits of their wrongful conduct, and failed to repudiate the misconduct.

25

26

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13. The matter is properly filed within the Unlimited Jurisdiction of the Court in that:

27 (I) Plaintiff seeks Declaratory and Injunctive Relief, which is beyond the jurisdiction of a court

28
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1 of Limited Jurisdiction; and, (2) the amount in controversy, including Plaintiffs statutory claim

2 for an award of reasonable attorney's fees, exceeds $25,000.00.

14. The County of San Mateo is the proper venue for the matter pursuant to Civil Code

4 $2984.4(a) and/or CivilCode $ 1780(c).

FACTS RELEVANTTO ALLCAUSES OF ACTION

15. On or about January 27, 2011, Plaintiff went to SELLER'S place of business and

7 purchased a new 2011 Nissan TR 4x2 Crew vehicle, VIN 1N6ADOFR3BC416749 (VEHICLE) and

8 executed a Retail Installment Sale Contract (CONTRACT) for said purchase. A copy of the

9 CONTRACT is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and fully incorporated herein.

10

12

16. The Cash Price for the Vehicle is itemized as $25,845.46 on Line 1.A.1 of the

CONTRACT.

17. As part of the CONTRACT, SELLER represented that a Smog Abatement Fee of

1 3
$20.00 was due, and SELLER charged $20.00 for said fee at Line 2.D.

14
18. Plaintiffis informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that SELLER misrepresented the

Smog Abatement Fee and overcharged Plaintifffor said fee.
15

16

17

19. SELLER never refunded Plaintifffor the overcharge of the Smog Abatement Fee.

20. As part of the CONTRACT for the purchase of the VEHICLE, Plaintifftraded in a used

2007 Nisan Titan 4x2 vehicle, VIN 1NGAA07N213903 as the down payment toward the purchase of
18

the VEHICLE.
19

20
21. The trade-in vehicle was subject to a prior credit lien with Nissan Motor Acceptance

Corporation.
21

22
22. The principal balance due to Nissan Motor Acceptance Corporation as of the date of the

CONTRACT for the trade-in lien was $ 7,988.47.
23

24

25

26

23. SELLER represented a "Less Prior Credit or Lease Balance" to be $8075.05 at Line 6B

of the CONTRACT.

24. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that SELLER requested a 10-

day pay off from Nissan Motor Acceptance Corporation, and was therefore given the amount of
27

28
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1 $ 8,075.05, which includes interest on the trade-in lien after the date of the CONTRACT.

25. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that SELLER only paid

3 $7,963.27 toward the prior credit lien for the trade-in vehicle.

26. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the payment of $7,963.27

5 was a short payoff, and left a remainder of $25.20 due and owing on the prior credit lien for the trade-

6 in vehicle.

27. SELLER agreed and was required to pay offthe prior credit lien for the trade-in vehicle

8 within twenty-one (21) days of the execution of the CONTRACT.

28. SELLER failed to pay offthe prior credit lien for the trade-in vehicle within twenty-one

10 (21) days of the execution of the CONTRACT, in violation ofVehicle Code $ 11709.4.

29. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the prior credit lienholder

12 (Nissan Motor Acceptance Corporation) for the trade-in vehicle ultimately agreed to waive the $25.20

13 deficiency due on the lien and tendered the title for the trade-in vehicle to SELLER.

14 30. SELLER never refunded the $ 112.23 difference between the prior credit lien itemized

15 on the CONTRACT of $ 8,075.05 and the $7,963.27 paid by SELLER for the prior credit lien for the

16 trade-in vehicle.

17

18

31. SELLER kept the $ 112.23 difference as profit on the VEHICLE sale.

32. By and through the CONTRACT, SELLER charged Plaintiff for Vehicle License Fees

19 and Registration, Transfer and Titling Fees and represented that the amounts charged and financed

20 would be paid to public officials.

21 33. SELLER itemized and charged Plaintiff$ 151.00 for Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees

22 on Line 2.B. of the CONTRACT.

23 34. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the $ 151.00 charge for

24 Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees represents and overcharge of the amount due and actually paid by

25 SELLER to public officials relative to the purchase of the VEHICLE.

26 35. Plaintiff never received any refund from SELLER of the overcharged amount for

27 Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees as required by Vehicle Code $ 11713.4.

28
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36. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that SELLER kept and retained

2 the overcharged amount for Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees as profit on the VEHICLE purchase

3 transaction.

37. Shortly after Plaintiffpurchased the VEHICLE from SELLER, SELLER assigned and

5 HOLDER accepted assignment of the CONTRACT for the purchase of the subject VEHICLE.

38. The CONTRACT accepted by HOLDER contained, in pertinent part, the following

7 terms and provisions in ten point, bold face, type:

10

12

"NOTICE: ANY HOLDER OF THIS CONSUMER CREDIT CONTRACT IS

SUBJECT TO ALL CLAIMS AND DEFENSES WHICH THE DEBTOR COULD

ASSERT AGAINST THE SELLER OF GOODS OR SERVICES OBTAINED

PURSUANT HERETO OR WITH THE PROCEEDS HEREOF."

39. The CONTRACT accepted by HOLDER also contained the following terms and

13 provisions at paragraph 3.c.: "You willpay our reasonable costs to collect what you owe, including

14 attorney fees, court costs, collection agency fees, and fees paid for other reasonable collection efforts."

15 40. All conditions precedent to Defendants'iability, and to PlaintifFs right to recover,

16 have occurred or been waived.

17

18

19

21

24

27

28
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
For Breach of Contract

Against SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive

41. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth in

this cause ofaction.

42. SELLER, HOLDER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, entered into the written CONTRACT

with the Plaintiffand Plaintiffaccepted delivery of the VEHICLEbased upon the terms and conditions

of the CONTRACT, as represented by SELLER.

43. SELLER, HOLDER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, materially breached the contract by

failing to timely pay off the lien on the trade-in vehicle, as agreed and required by the CONTRACT

and Vehicle Code $ 11709.4.

44. SELLER, HOLDER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, materially breached the contract by
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1 failing to pay offthe lien for the trade-in vehicle in full, as agreed and required by the CONTRACT.

45. SELLER, HOLDER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, materially breached the contract by

3 overcharging for the Smog Abatement Fee and Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees, and failing to

4 refund the overcharged amounts to Plaintiff.

46. As a direct and proximate result of the breach of contract by SELLER, HOLDER, and

6 DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, Plaintiff suffered harm, and continues to suffer harm, both economic and

7 non-economic, in an amount according to proof at the time of trial, including, but not limited to, all

8 payments for the VEHICLE.

47. Plaintiff performed all conditions, covenants and promises required on his part to be

10 performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the CONTRACT.

48. Pursuant to the terms of the CONTRACT, HOLDER is subject to all claims asserted by

12 Plaintiffagainst SELLER by this Cause ofAction.

13

14

15

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
For Fraud

Against SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive

49. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth in

16
this cause ofaction.

17
50. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, misrepresented to Plaintiff the

18
existence of and the amount due as a Smog Abatement Fee for the VEHICLE purchase at line 2.D. of

the CONTRACT.
20

51. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, misrepresented to Plaintiff the

21
amount of Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees due for the VHEICLE purchase at line 2.B. of the

CONTRACT.

23
52. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed from Plaintiffthe amount

24 of overcharge for the Smog Abatement Fee and the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees as itemized on

the CONTRACT.

26

27

28
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53. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed from Plaintiffhis right to

a refund of the amount ofovercharge for the Smog Abatement Fee as itemized on the CONTRACT.

7
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1 54. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed from Plaintiffhis right to

2 a refund of the amount of overcharge for the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees as itemized on the

3 CONTRACT.

4 55. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, misrepresented to Plaintiff that the

5 lien on the trade-in vehicle was $ 8,075.05, based upon SELLER request for a 10-day payoff from the

6 lienholder.

7 56. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, conceded from Plaintiff that the

8 trade-in lien represented on the CONTRACT was a 10-day payoff and therefore included interest on

9 the trade-in lien after the date ofcontract.

10 57. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, misrepresented to Plaintiff that the

11 lien on the trade-in vehicle would be timely and completely paid off.

12 58. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed from Plaintiffthat the lien

13 on the trade-in vehicle was not paid offas agreed.

14 59. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed from Plaintiffthe fact that

15 the lienholder agreed to waive an unpaid portion of the trade-in lien.

16 60. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed from Plaintiffthe amount

17 ofovercharge on the CONTRACT for the lien on the trade-in vehicle.

18 61. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed &om Plaintiff the unpaid

19 amount of the lien on the trade-in vehicle.

20 62. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, concealed from Plaintiffhis right to

21 a refund of the overcharged and unpaid amount of the trade-in lien.

22 63. The intentional misrepresentations of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 — 20,

23 Inclusive, as alleged in the preceding paragraphs, constitutes actionable fraud as defined in California

24 CivilCode $ 1710. Specifically, these misrepresentations constituted:

25

26

27

28
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a. Suggestions of fact which were not true, where SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20,

inclusive, did not believe them to be true (CivilCode $ 1710(1));

b. Assertions of fact which were not true, where SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20,
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inclusive, did not believe them to be true (Civil Code $ 1710(2)); and,

Suppression of fact, by SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, inclusive, who were

bound to disclose them, and suppression of information of other facts, which were

likely to mislead for want of communication of the suppressed fact(s) (Civil Code g

5 1710(3)).

6 64. Vehicle Code )f9993, 11705 (a)(14), 11711(a), and 11713(a) impose affirmative duties

7 on SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, inclusive, not to make representations that are untrue or

8 misleading and, thus, to disclose to Plaintiff the suppressed and concealed facts. Said Defendants

9 were under a further duty ofdisclosure because said Defendants knew of the concealed and suppressed

10 facts and also knew that those facts were neither known nor readily accessible by Plaintiff.

11 65. It was the objective of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, inclusive, to sell the

12 VEHICLE and optional items by whatever means necessary. Thus, said Defendants made the

13 misrepresentations and omissions of fact with the intent to deceive and defraud Plaintiff and for the

14 purpose of inducing Plaintiff to rely upon the representations and to act in reliance thereon by

15 executing the CONTRACT, accepting delivery of the VEHICLE, and continuing to act in compliance

16 with the CONTRACT.

17 66. Plaintiffdid not know that the representations of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1—

18 20, inclusive, were false, and was unaware of the concealed and suppressed facts because said

19 Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff with sufficient information to make an independent

20 determination of the facts.

21 67. Plaintiff acted in reliance on the truth of the representations made by SELLER,

22 HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, inclusive, by executing the CONTRACT, accepting delivery of the

23 VEHICLE, and by thereafter making payments. Plaintiffs reliance was justified because said

24 Defendants are licensed vehicle Dealers and Plaintiff had no reason to disbelieve or distrust said

25 Defendants.

26 68. Because of the fraud by intentional misrepresentation and concealment by SELLER,

27 and DOES 1 —20, inclusive, Plaintiffis entitled to rescind the CONTRACT and obtain restitution.

28
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69. As a direct and proximate result of the fraud by SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20,

2 inclusive, Plaintiff suffered harm, and continues to suffer harm, both economic and non-economic, in

3 an amount according to proof at the time of trial, including, but not limited to, all payments for the

4 VEHICLE.

70. The fraud of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, inclusive, as herein alleged, was

6 on the parts of the officers, directors, and managing agents of said Defendants. Said officers,

7 directors, and managing agents had advance knowledge of the unfitness of the employees who

8 committed the fraud against Plaintiff, employed those employees with a conscious disregard of the

9 rights of others, authorized the conduct ifthe employees, and ratified their conduct after the fact by

10 accepting the profits and benefits of the CONTRACT, refusing to rescind the CONTRACT, and

11 failing to discharge or discipline the responsible employees.

12 71. The conduct of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, inclusive, constitutes fraud

13 within the meaning of Civil Code $ 3294(c)(3) such that Plaintiff is entitled to punitive damages

14 according to proof.

15 72. Pursuant to the terms of the CONTRACT, HOLDER is subject to all claims asserted by

16 Plaintiffagainst SELLER by this Cause ofAction.

17 73. Pursuant to Vehicle Code section 11711, Plaintiffhas been damaged and suffered

18 a loss as a result of the fraud, misrepresentations/failures to disclose, and/or statutory violations

19 of SELLER and its representatives during the course of the sale of the VEHICLE to Plaintiff,

20 entitling Plaintiffa right ofaction against SURETY as to SELLER's bond.

21

22

23

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
For Negligent Misrepresentation

SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive

74. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs, except allegations of
24 punitive damages, as though fully set forth in this cause ofaction.

25
75. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, had an affirmative duty, pursuant to

26 Vehicle Code )$ 9993, 11705(a)(14), 11711, and 11713(a) not to make representations that were

27 untrue or misleading.

28
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76. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, had an affirmative duty to charge

2 Plaintiffonly those amounts that were actually due and payable to Public Officials as a result of the

3 VEHICLEpurchase transaction.

77. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that the

5 existence of and the amount itemized as a Smog Abatement Fee on the CONTRACT was inaccurate

6 and improper.

78. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently misrepresented to

8 Plaintiffthe existence of and the amount due as a Smog Abatement Fee for the VEHICLEpurchase at

9 line 2.D. of the CONTRACT.

10 79. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that the

11 amount of Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees itemized on the CONTRACT was inaccurate and

12 improper.

13 80. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 — 20, Inclusive, negligently misrepresented to

14 Plaintiff the amount of Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees due for the VEHICLE purchase at line 2.B.

15 of the CONTRACT.

16 81. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that the

17 amounts charged for the Smog Abatement Fee and the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees as itemized

18 on the CONTRACT represented an overcharge to Plaintiff.

19 82. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

20 of the amount of overcharge for the Smog Abatement Fee and the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees

21 as itemized on the CONTRACT.

22 83. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that

23 PlaintifF was entitled to a refund of the overcharge for the Smog Abatement Fee.

24 84. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

25 of his right to a refund of the amount of overcharge for the Smog Abatement Fee as itemized on the

26 CONTRACT.

27

28

85. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that
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1 Plaintiffwas entitled to a refund of the overcharge for the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees.

2 86. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

3 of his right to a refund of the amount of overcharge for the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees as

4 itemized on the CONTRACT.

5 87. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that the

6 trade-in lien amount itemized on the CONTRACT represented a 10-day payoff amount, rather than the

7 amount ofprincipal due on the trade-in lien as of the date of the CONTRACT.

8 88. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 — 20, Inclusive, negligently misrepresented to

9 Plaintiff that the lien on the trade-in vehicle was $8,075.05, based upon SELLER request for a 10-day

10 payoff from the lienholder.

11 89. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

12 that the trade-in lien represented on the CONTRACT was a 10-day payoff and therefore included

13 interest on the trade-in lien after the date ofcontract.

14 90. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that

15 Plaintiff was, by the 10-day payoff, being charged interest on the trade-in lien after the date of the

16 CONTRACT.

17 91. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that that

18 the trade-in lien was required to be timely paid off.

19 92. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently misrepresented to

20 Plaintiffthat the lien on the trade-in vehicle would be timely and completely paid off.

21 93. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

22 that the lien on the trade-in vehicle was not paid offas agreed.

23 94. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

24 of the fact that the lienholder agreed to waive an unpaid portion of the trade-in lien.

25 95. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

26 of the amount ofovercharge on the CONTRACT for the lien on the trade-in vehicle.

27

28

Uis A. Liberty
'0 BRIDGE PARKWAY

ROOD CITY, CA 64065
141 650-341-0300
~x 650-341-0303
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1 of the unpaid amount of the lien on the trade-in vehicle.

2 97. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew or should have known that

3 Plaintiffwas entitled to a refund of the overcharge for the trade-in lien.

4 98. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to inform Plaintiff

5 ofhis right to a refund of the overcharged and unpaid amount of the trade-in lien.

6 99. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, negligently failed to refund to

7 Plaintiffthe overcharged and unpaid amount of the trade-in lien.

8 100. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew, or should have known, that

9 Plaintiff would rely on the representations of its agents when deciding whether to consummate the

10 transaction for the VEHICLE.

11 101. SELLER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew, or should have known, that Plaintiff

12 would rely on its representations when deciding whether to consummate the transaction for the

13 VEHICLE.

14 102. Plaintiff trusted and did rely on the representations of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES

15 1 — 20, Inclusive, because said Defendants were in a position of superior knowledge; because

16 automobile dealers are prohibited by statute from making false or misleading statements in the course

17 of a transaction; and, because Plaintiffhad no reason to dish+st said Defendants.

18 103. As a result of the misrepresentations and/or omissions of facts, Plaintiff suffered harm,

19 and continues to suffer harm, both economic and non-economic, in an amount according to proof at

20 the time of trial, including, but not limited to, all payments for the VEHICLE.

21 104. Plaintiffs reliance on the representations of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20,

22 Inclusive, are substantial factors in causing the harm suffered by Plaintiff.

23 105. Pursuant to the terms of the CONTRACT, HOLDER is subject to all claims asserted by

24 Plaintiffagainst SELLER by this Cause ofAction.

25

26

28
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Violation of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act,

California CivilCode g 1750, et seq.
Against SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive

10

13

106. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth in

this cause ofaction.

107. Plaintiff is a "person" as defined at Civil Code $ 1761(c) and a "consumer as defined at

Civil Code $ 1761(d).

108. SELLER and HOLDER are each a "person" as defined at CivilCode $ 1761(c).

109. The VEHICLE is a "good" as defined at CivilCode $ 1761(a).

110. When SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, failed to properly disclose and

itemize the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees at Line 2B of the CONTRACT, said Defendants

violated CivilCode $ 1770(a)(14) and (19).

111. When SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, failed to properly disclose and

14 itemize the Smog Abatement Fee, said Defendants violated CivilCode $ 1770(a)(14) and (19).

15

18

112. When SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, overcharged Plaintiff for the

trade-in lien at Line 6B of the CONTRACT, said Defendants violated Civil Code $ 1770(a)(13), (14)

and (19).

113. When SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, failed to itemize the amount

of the trade-in lien which would be paid by SELLER, said Defendants violated Civil Code

20 $ 1770(a)(13), (14) and (19).

21

24

27

28
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114. When SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, represented to Plaintiff that

the lien on the trade-in vehicle would be timely paid off, said Defendants violated Civil Code

$ 1770(a)(13), (14), (16) and (19).

115. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, knew, or should have known, that

Plaintiff would rely on the representations of its agents when deciding whether to consummate the

transaction for the VEHICLE.

116. Plaintiff seeks an order, pursuant to Civil Code $ 1780(a)(2), enjoining SELLER,

14
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1 HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, from continuing to harm Plaintiff by enforcing the Retail

2 Installment Sales Contract during the time this action is pending.

3 117. Pursuant to the terms of the CONTRACT, HOLDER is subject to all claims asserted by

4 Plaintiffagainst SELLER by this Cause ofAction.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Violation of the Rees-Levering Motor Vehicle Sales and Finance Act,

California CivilCode g 2981, et seq.
Against SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive

10

12

13

118. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth in

this cause ofaction.

119. PlaintiA; SELLER, HOLDER, are each a "Person" within the meaning of Civil

Code $ 2981(d).

120. SELLER, a "Seller" within the meaning of CivilCode $2981(b).

121. The subject of the CONTRACT is a "Motor Vehicle" within the meaning of Civil

14 Code $ 2981(k).

15

17

21

24

26

28
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122. Civil Code $2982(a) provides a list of the disclosures which a conditional sale

contract for the sale of a motor vehicle shall contain.

123. Civil Code $ 2982 requires that "[e]very conditional sale contract subject to this

chapter shall contain the disclosures required by Regulation Z, whether or not Regulation Z

applies to the transaction." SELLER and DOES 1 — 20, Inclusive, failed to provide the

disclosures required by Regulation Z.

124. When SELLER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, failed to properly disclose and

itemize the Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees at Line 2B of the CONTRACT, said Defendants

violated CivilCode $ 2982(a)(2)(B).

125. When SELLER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, failed to properly disclose and

itemize a Smog Abatement Fee, said Defendants violated CivilCode $2982(a)(4).

126. When SELLER and DOES 1
—20, Inclusive, failed to accurately disclose, at lien

6.B. of the CONTRACT, the prior loan balance for the trade-in vehicle, said Defendants violated

15
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1 Civil Code $ 2982(a)(6)(B).

2 127. When SELLER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, failed to properly itemize and

3 disclose the amount of trade-in lien to be paid for the trade-in vehicle, said Defendants violated

4 CivilCode $ 2982(a)(6)(B).

5 128. As a result of the failure to provide the disclosures required by Regulation Z the

6 CONTRACT does not disclose "all of the agreements between the buyer and seller with respect

7 to ... the terms ofpayment for the motor vehicle ...", in violation ofCivilCode $ 2981.9.

8 129. As a result of the improper itemizations and false disclosures at lines 2B, 2D and

9 6B of the CONTRACT, the true terms of payment for the VEHICLE cannot be ascertained

10 without resorting to one or more unincorporated documents, in violation of CivilCode $ 2981.9.

11 130. The Rees-Levering Motor Vehicle Sales and Finance Act, Civil Code $ 2981, et

12 seq. (also known as the Automobile Sales Finance Act —"ASFA"), provides, at $2984, that

13 certain failures to comply with the requirements of the Act may, within specified time&ames, be

14 corrected by a holder. The Act does not provide for correction under any circumstances by a

15 seller.

16 131. HOLDER did not make any correction of any failure to comply with any of the

17 requirements ofASFA within the timeframes specified at $ 2984.

18 132. Notwithstanding the violations of CivilCode $ 2981, et seq., the CONTRACT is a

19 valid contract, neither void nor voidable.

20 133. Notwithstanding that the CONTRACT is a valid contract, pursuant to Civil Code

21 $ 2983, the CONTRACT "shall not be enforceable."

22 134. As a direct result of the acts and/or omissions of SELLER and DOES 1 —20,

23 Inclusive, Plaintiff suffered harm, and continues to suffer harm, both economic and non-

24 economic, in an amount according to proof at the time of trial, including, but not limited to, all

25 payments for the VEHICLE, and interest on the monies wrongfully retained by SELLER which

26 were due to be refunded to Plaintiff.

27 135. Pursuant to Civil Code $2983.4, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of reasonable

28
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1 attorney's fees and costs.

2 136. Pursuant to Vehicle Code section 11711, Plaintiffhas been damaged and suffered

3 a loss as a result of the fraud, misrepresentations/failures to disclose, and/or statutory violations

4 of SELLER and its representatives during the course of the sale of the VEHICLE to Plaintiff,

5 entitling Plaintiffa right of action against SURETY as to SELLER's bond.

6 137. Pursuant to the terms of the CONTRACT, HOLDER is subject to all claims

7 asserted by Plaintiffagainst SELLER by this Cause ofAction.

10

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Violation ofCalifornia Business and Professions Code $17200, et seq.

Unlawful Acts or Practices.
Against AllDefendants

138. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth in

this cause ofaction.

13 139. Business and Professions Code $ 17200 provides that "unfair competition shall

14 mean and include any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice and unfair,

deceptive, untrue or misleading advertising and any act prohibited by Chapter 1 (commencing

with Section 17500) ofPart 3 ofDivision 7 of the Business and Professions Code.

17 140. SELLER's conduct, as alleged herein, is unlawful in that it violates statutory and

18 regulatory prescriptions designed to protect consumers, including Plaintiff, including but not

19 limited to Vehicle Code $ $ 11713(a), Civil Code $ /2981.9 and 2982, Civil Code f$ 1770, 1710,

20 3294.

21 141. As a direct, proximate, and foreseeable result of the wrongful business acts and/or

practices ofDefendants, and each of them, as alleged herein, Plaintiffhas suffered harm, and continues

23 to suffer harm, both economic and non-economic, in an amount according to proof at the time of trial.

24 142. Plaintiff and the public are entitled to relief, including full restitution and/or

disgorgement of all revenues, earnings, profits, compensation, and benefits, in an amount subject to

proof at the time of trial, which may have been obtained by Defendants, Inclusive, as a result of the

27 wrongful business acts and/or practices of SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, and each

28 17
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1 of them, as alleged herein.

2 143. Pursuant to Vehicle Code section 11711, Plaintiffhas been damaged and suffered

3 a loss as a result of the fraud, misrepresentations/failures to disclose, and/or statutory violations

4 of SELLER and its representatives during the course of the sale of the VEHICLE to Plaintiff,

5 entitling Plaintiffa right ofaction against SURETY as to SELLER's bond.

6 144. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that the wrongful acts

7 and/or omissions of Defendants, and each of them, as alleged above, constitute a serious threat and

8 wrong to Plaintiffand the public.

9 145. Plaintiff seeks an order, pursuant to Business and Professions Code $ 17203, enjoining

10 Defendants from perpetuating and continuing to violate consumer protection statutes, including but not

11 limited to, Vehicle Code $ 11713(a), Civil Code $ /1750 et seq. $ 2981 et seq., and failing to abide by

12 the terms ofRetail Installment Sales Contract.

13 146. Plaintiff seeks an order, pursuant to Business and Professions Code $ 17203, enjoining

14 Defendants from continuing to harm Plaintiffby enforcing the Retail Installment Sales Contract during

15 the time this action is pending.

16 147. Pursuant to the terms of the CONTRACT, HOLDER is subject to all claims

17 asserted by Plaintiffagainst SELLER by this Cause ofAction.

18

19

20

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
For Violation of California Business and Professions Code $17500, et seq.

Untrue, False and/or Misleading Advertisement
Against SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive

21 148. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth in

22 this cause ofaction.

23 149. Business & Professions Code $ 17500 provides that it is unlawful for any corporation

24 to knowingly make, by means of any advertising device or otherwise, any false, untrue or misleading

25 statement with the intent to sell a product or service, or to induce the public to purchase a product or

26 service. Any statement in advertising that is likely to deceive members of the public constitutes false

27 and misleading advertising under Business & Professions Code $ 17500.

28
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150. Vehicle Code $ 11713(a) defines advertising:

No holder of any license issued under this Article shall do any of the following:
(a) Make or disseminate, or cause to be made or disseminated, before the public
in this state, in any newspaper or other publication, or any advertising device, or
by public outcry or proclamation, or in any other manner or means whatever,
any statement which is untrue or misleading and which is known, or which by
the exercise of reasonable care should be known, to be untrue or misleading; or
to so make or disseminate, or cause to be so disseminated, any statement as part
of a plan or scheme with the intent not to sell any vehicle or service so
advertised at the price stated therein, or as so advertised.

151. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 — 20, Inclusive, disseminated advertising/made

8 statements that they knew or should reasonably know were false and misleading. This conduct

9 includes, but is not limited to, failure to properly itemize and disclose Smog Abatement Fee and

10 Registration/Transfer/Titling Fees; representing the amount of lien due on trade-in vehicle;

11 representing that the lien on the trade-in vehicle would be timely and completely paid off; and

12 representing the amount SELLER intended to pay offfor the trade-in lien.

13 152. Plaintiffhas suffered injury in fact and lost money or property as a result of
Defendants'4

acts of false advertising. Defendants know or reasonably should know that this advertising is false and

15 misleading as set forth in detail in the preceding paragraphs.

16 153. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, by committing the acts alleged

17 above, the said Defendants have knowingly disseminated false, untrue and/or misleading statements in

18 an advertising or other device with the intent to sell and/or induce members of the public to purchase

19 automobiles, said Defendant violated the Business & Professions Code $ 17500.

20 154. SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, by the aforesaid acts, have engaged

21 in false advertising in violation of California Business and Professions Code f 17500, resulting in

22 injury in fact and loss ofmoney and/or property to Plaintiffin an amount to be proven at trial.

23 155. Plaintiff seeks an order, pursuant to Business and Professions Code $ 17535, enjoining

24 SELLER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, for injunctive relief and restitution is specifically authorized for

25 violations of Business & Professions Code $ 17500 et seq. As Business & Professions Code $ 17534.5

26 provides that "the remedies or penalties provided by this chapter are cumulative to each other and to

27 the remedies or penalties available under all other laws of this state."

28 19
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1 156. Plaintiff seeks an order, pursuant to $ 17536, of the Business and Professions Code,

2 enjoining SELLER, HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, be assessed to maximum civilpenalty for

3 each and every violation of Business and Professions Code $ 17500, according to proof at the time of

4 trial.

157. Pursuant to Vehicle Code section 11711, Plaintiffhas been damaged and suffered

6 a loss as a result of the fraud, misrepresentations/failures to disclose, and/or statutory violations

7 of SELLER and its representatives during the course of the sale of the VEHICLE to Plaintiff,

8 entitling Plaintiffa right ofaction against SURETY as to SELLER's bond.

158. Pursuant to the terms of the CONTRACT, HOLDER is subject to all claims

10 asserted by Plaintiffagainst SELLER by this Cause ofAction.

12

13

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Request for Declaratory Relief (C.C.P. g 1060)

Against SELLER, HOLDER and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive

159. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth in

15

18

this cause ofaction.

160. Plaintiff alleges that the various false and misleading representations, failures to

provide mandatory disclosures and/or unfair and deceptive practices engaged in by SELLER and

DOES 1 —20, give rise to damages to Plaintiff.

161. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that SELLER, HOLDER, and

21

DOES 1 — 20, Inclusive, and each of them, dispute these contentions and contend that the

CONTRACT is unenforceable.

162. As such, an actual controversy has arisen and now exists between Plaintiff and said

23

Defendants concerning their respective rights and duties under the CONTRACT.

163. Plaintiff desires a judicial determination of the rights and duties of all parties to this

26

action under the CONTRACT, including a declaration as to whether the CONTRACT is enforceable,

and, a declaration of the liability, ifany, including Plaintiffs claim for an award ofattorney's fees.

164. A judicial declaration is necessary and appropriate at this time under the circumstances

28
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

2 WHEREFORE, Plaintiffprays for judgment, as follows:

3 On the First Cause of Action, for Breach of Contract Against SELLER, HOLDER,

4 and DOES I —20, Inclusive, jointly and severally:

10

a. For the award of damages for breach of Contract.

b. For consequential damages;

c. For interest on the amount of damages at the legal rate from the date each

item of damage was incurred;

d. For reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses; and,

e. For such other and further relief as the court deems appropriate under the

circumstances.

12 On the Second Cause of Action, for Fraud, against SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY

13 and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, jointly and severally:

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

a. For special and general damages in an amount in excess of $25,000.00,

according to proof;

b. For interest on the amount of damages at the legal rate from the date each

item of damage was incurred;

c. For punitive or exemplary damages;

d. For injunctive relief precluding Defendants from engaging in further

unlawful acts;

e. For reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses; and

f. For such other and further relief as the court deems appropriate under the

circumstances.

On the Third Cause of Action, for Negligent Misrepresentation, against SELLER,

25 HOLDER, and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, jointly and severally:

26

27

a. For special and general damages in an amount in excess of $25,000.00,

according to proof;

28 21
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b. For interest on the amount of damages at the legal rate from the date each

item of damage was incurred; and,

c. For such other and further relief as the court deems appropriate under the

circumstances.

5 On the Fourth Cause of Action, for Violation of the Consumers Legal Remedies

6 Act, against SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY and DOES 1 — 20, Inclusive, jointly and

7 severally:

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

a. For a determination by the court that the conduct of Defendants

constitutes a violation of the CLRA;

b. For a temporary restraining order, a preliminary injunction, and an order

requiring Defendants to show cause why they should not be enjoined, pursuant

to $ 1780(a)(2), from enforcing the subject contract during the time this action

is pending;

c. For injunctive relief pursuant to $ 1780(a)(2) prohibiting Defendants from

continuing to harm Plaintiffby enforcing the Retail Installment Sales Contract

during the time this action is pending;

d. For injunctive relief pursuant to $ 1780(a)(2) precluding Defendants from

engaging in further unlawful act; and,

e. For an Order declaring that Plaintiffis a prevailing party;

f. For such other and further relief as the court deems appropriate under the

circumstances.

22 On the Fifth Cause of Action, for Violation of the Rees-Levering Motor

23 Vehicle Sales and Finance Act, against SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY and DOES 1—

24 20, Inclusive, jointly and severally:

25

26

27

a. For a determination by the court that the conduct of Defendants

constitutes a violation of the Act;

b. For a determination by the court that Plaintiff may elect to rescind

28 22
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the CONTRACT and return the VEHICLE;

c. For restitution of all monies paid pursuant to the CONTRACT,

according to proof;

d. For interest on the restitution amount at the legal rate from the date

each item of restitution was incurred;

e. For an Order declaring that Plaintiffis a prevailing party;

f. For reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses; and,

g. For such other and further relief as the court deems appropriate

under the circumstances.

10 On the Sixth Cause of Action, for Violation of California Business and Professions

11 Code $ 17200, et seq., Unlawful Acts or Practices, against all Defendants, jointly and

12 severally:

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

a. For a determination by the court that the conduct of Defendants, as

alleged herein, constitutes a violation of Vehicle Code $ 11709.4;

b. For a determination by the court that the conduct of Defendants, as

alleged herein, constitutes a violation of the Consumers Legal Remedies

Act, California Civil Code $ 1750, et seq.;

c. For a determination by the court that the conduct of Defendants, as

alleged herein, constitutes a violation of the Automobile Sales Finance

Act, California Civil Code $ 2981, et seq.;

d. For a temporary restraining order, a preliminary injunction, and an order

requiring Defendants to show cause why they should not be enjoined from

continuing to harm Plaintiff by enforcing the subject contract during the

time this action is pending;

e. For a temporary restraining order, a preliminary injunction, and a

permanent injunction, all enjoining Defendant and their agents, servants,

and employees, and all persons acting under, in concert with, or for

28 23
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10

12

13

14

15

16

17

Defendants, from violating Civil Code $ /1750, et seq. and 2981, et seq.

and the rights of Plaintiff to full and truthful disclosure, as required

therein;

f. For a temporary restraining order, a preliminary injunction, and a

permanent injunction, all enjoining Defendant and their agents, servants,

and employees, and all persons acting under, in concert with, or for

Defendants, from violating the terms of Retail Installment Sale Contracts

specifically as to its rescission rights;

g. For restitution and/or disgorgement of all revenues, earnings, profits,

compensation, and benefits which may have been obtained by Defendants

as a result of such unlawful business acts or practices;

h. For a civil penalty for each unlawful violation;

i. For interest on the restitution amount at the legal rate from the date each

item of restitution was incurred;

j. For reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses; and,

k. For such other and further relief as the court deems appropriate under the

circumstances.

18 On the Seventh Cause of Action, for Violation of California Business and

19 Professions Code $ 17500, et seq., Untrue, False and/or Misleading Advertisement, against

20 SELLER, HOLDER, SURETY and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, jointly and severally:

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

a. For a permanent injunction, enjoining all Defendants their successors, assigns,

agents, representatives, employees and all persons who act in concert with them

be permanently enjoined from making any untrue or misleading statements in

violation of Business and Professions Code section 17500 and Vehicle Code

$ 11713(a);

b. For the court to assess maximum civil penalty against each Defendant for

each violation of Business and Professions Code section 17500;
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c. For restitution and/or disgorgement of all money, earnings, profits, or other

property, which may have been obtained by Defendants as a result of their

violations ofBusiness and Professions Code section 17500;

d. For costs of suit, including costs of investigation; and,

e. For such other and further relief as the nature of the case may require and

the court deems appropriate to fully and successfully dissipate the effects

of the untrue, false and/or misleading statements complained of herein.

8 On the Eighth Cause of Action, for Declaratory Relief, against SELLER, HOLDER

9 and DOES 1 —20, Inclusive, jointly and severally:

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

a. For a determination by the court that the CONTRACT is in force;

b. For a determination by the court that HOLDER is responsible for all

claims and defenses which Plaintiff could bring against SELLER,

including claims for attorney's fees and costs;

c. For interest on the amount of damages at the legal rate from the date each

item of damage was incurred;

d. For a determination by the court that Plaintiff is entitled by statute to

reimbursement of reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses; and,

e. For such other and further relief as the court deems appropriate under the

19 circumstances.

20 Dated: September, 2012 LIBERTY& ASSOCIATES, A PLC

21

22

23

24

Louis A. Libe
Michele M. Tum
Attorney for Plaintiff,
GENE CONDON

25

26

27
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Aa.jDAVIT

2

3 My name is fo~~ . I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth herein and

4 am the plaintiffin this action.

County

10

» CLm
14 5.. The Defendantresides or its principal place ofbusiness is in ~+

5 ASFA
6 1. At the commencement of this action I resided in

7 2. At the time the contract or purchase order was entered into I resided in

8 $P ~Mt'ounty.
9 3. I signed the contract or purchase order that is the subject of this dispute in

i"~ In ~County.
r

11 4. g The motor vehicle purchased pursuant to the contract or purchase order that is

12 subject to this dispute is permanently garaged in A- ~~~ County.

15

16 6.

17 7.

18

County.

~e Defendant is doing business in

A substantial portion of the transaction

c,
occurred in County.

I declare under the penalty ofperjury under the laws of the State ofCalifornia that the

foregoing is true and correct.

21

22 fi'" l7-

24

Signature:

25

26

27

28
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RETAILINSTALLMENTSALE CONTRACT —SIMPLE FINANCE CHARGE

R.O.S. Number Stock NumberContract NumberDealer Number

Buyer Name and Address
(Indudlng County and Zip Code)

ii

Ii'j;T, Q a-ill gi

Co-Buyer Name and Address
(Including County and Zip Code)

Creditor-Seger (Name and Address)
rir"0 ny rg NISSgri„ INC
:iE'0 P L"~>IHO P.E,AL

k',>l LqqqE F q 'rq.-J'i

'65@i 697-8397

Primary Use For Whhh Purchased

6 personal, farngy or household

0 business or commercialIi)ISSAN

Cf(EW
INFPQSFR3SC41E7492Q I 1

You, the Buyer (and Co-Buyer, lf any), may buy the vehide below for cash or on cradiL By signing this contrad, )eu choose to buy tfe vehide on crefit under Ihe

agreements on the front and back of this contracL You agree to pay the Creditor - Seller (sometimes 'we'r us' this~ the Amount Financed and Finance

Charge in U.S.funds according tq tttp,paymertt schedule below. We willfigure pur finance charge on a daily basis. The Truth-In@ending Disdosunmbelow are part of this contract

New Make
Used Year and Model Odometer Vehide Id nggcagon Number

FEDERALTRUTH-IN-LENDINGDISCLOSURES
RNANCE Amount Total of Total Sale
CHARGE Rnanced Payments Price
The dollar The amount of The amount you The total cost of
amount the credit provided willhave paid aRer your purchase on
credit will to you or you have made ag credit, including
cost you. on your behalf. payments as your down

scheduled. payment of
tfi88.89 is9.8'j, O.gg(e) $ 2777II 8$ $ 27774 8$ (e) g 287/4 ~ 9> (e)

(e) means an estknate

ANNUAL
PERCENTAGE

RATE
The cost of

your crerfit as
a yearly rate.

YOUR PAYIIIENTSCHEDULE WILLBE
Number of Payments:

'ne

Payment of

One Payment of

Payments

Payments

One Final Payment

ITENIIZATIONOF THE AIIOUNTRNANCED (Sslhr msy keep part of the amounts

t. Total Cash Price

A. Cash Price of Motor Vehide and Accessories

t. Cash Price Vehide

2. Cash Price Accessories

3. Other (Nantssble)

Describe $

Describe
id/ H $

B. Document Preparation Fee (nal a governmental fse)

C. Smog Fee Paid ta Seger

D. (Optional) Theft Deterrent Device (to whom paid)

E (Op5onsl) Theft Deterrent Device (ta whom paid)

F. (Optional) Theft Deterrent Dsvhe (to whom paid)

G. (Opiansl) Surhcs Piatscgan Pedud (ta whom paid)

H. (Optional) Suihcs Petec5an Peduct (ta whom paid)

I. Sales Tsx (on taxable items in A through H)

J. Optional DMV Electronic Fghg Fee

K. (Opgonal) Service Contract (ta whom paid) NISSPA SAURIAN i

L (Op5onal) Service Contract (ta whom paid) T~/f~

M. (Optional) Service Cantrad (h whom paid) N/I
N. (Optional) Service Contract (ta whom paid)

O. (Op5onal) Service Contiad (ta whom paid) ll'
P. Prior Credit arJssse Balance paid by Sager to

N/H

$ 256-'. o. 46 (A)

$
23843 ~ 16

$ )l/A

i 8 g (B)
/Q

N/q (D)
N/R (Ej
N/ft (F)
II/I (G)

N/R (H)

2095. 79 (I)

N/A (Jj
N! A (Kj

II/ft
)I/O (Mj
II/A (N)

t(/R (O)

$
$

$
$

$

$

$

$

$
PLUS

$

$

$

$

N /A
(p)

(sse dawn payment snd tradiHn cahuagan)

CL (Optional) Gap Contract (ta whom paid)
)J/It (O)
N/ R i@i

Amount of Payments: When Payments Are Due:

N/Q
W/A
H/A Monthly, Beg'nning

4)2. qPI Monthly, Beginning Feb 27 2at I

4a-", '98 .Tan 27 PPtiF
N/A

Iah Charge 5 payment b not received h fdlwilia IO days alhr ilbdue, you wgi paya hte derge af 5% al ge part af ge payaeig that b lata

prepaymenL lfyou pay ag ag your debt early, yav may be charged a aiidmum finance charge.

security Interest Yau are gMng a sacargy Interest ia ge vahids tximg pxchasie.
Additional nfarmstha: Sss gvs cankad hr more hhrmagan indvding iahrmagaa abed renpsyiieat defagt any reqdred

repayment in lug bahrs tie schshkxf date, mkikaum finance charges, and Ixxxgy interest

STATEMENT OF INSURANCE
NOTICE. No peson h required as s condition of finandng
the purchase at a mahr vehide ta purchase or negotiate any
insurance through a partkuhr insurance company, agent or
broker. You are nat repdmd ta buy any other insurance ta
obtain ciegtvbur decision to buy or nat buy other insurance
willnat be a hdar in the crefit approval process

Vehicle Insurance
Term Premium

$ N/ I DeLCamp.Fire&Thai N/g Mal $ N/A

$ N/P DetCdgskm KLIMaR $ )I/A
)t/R U gs 0/0 M $

N/A

PepeityDamgs $ N/A IJmgs )~» es. $

N'A f(/A khan $ N/g
NIN ~!I( Nrit

Tahl Vbhide hsaiancs Premhm $ "/Ilj

UNLESS A CHARGE 5 INCLUDED IN THIS AGREEMENT FOR

PUBUC UAHUIYOR~ DAMAGE INSURANCE. PAYMENT
FOR SUCH COVERAGE 5 NOT PROVIDED BYTH5 AGREEMENT.

Yba msybayge physical damage nsurance this mquires
(ses back) hxn anyone yau choose who

'
ptable ta us.vau

are nat squiredhbuy any ager ins abtain credit

Coeuyer X

Seger ~/
nsiCHCxms axapanhs sg describe4e terms and ndilgaa

Application for Optional Credit Insurance
Q Cref&Ukx 0 Buyer 0 Ca-Buyer O Both

0 Cregt DisabRy (Buyer Only)

Term Exp. Premium

Crest Lge ~Mast~ $ Ni R

Total Credit Insurance Premiums $ "1i gi)

Insurance tympany Name¹H
'ome

Oflice Addmss
W/A

Crest gh nsurancs snd credit disabRy insurance sm nat
required h abhin credit Your dechian ta jxitar not buy credit
lih snd credit dissbRy inswancs will nat a fadar in ge
credit sppeval pecesL They wig nal be provided unless yau
sign and agree h pay ge exbs casL Credit gts 'nsurance h
based on your original payment schedule. This Issuance may
nat pay sl you awe on 5th cantrad it you msks lsts paymenh
Crsdil rgssbRy nsuisncs does nat cover any Increase in your
feymsnt or in the number al pa)xnsnts. Coverage for cnxgt lih
msuraixe snd credit dkebfrity insumncs ends on ge artgkel
due dah hr ge hst payment unless a dilfsrent term hr ge

You are applying hr the credit insurance marked
abave. Your signature below means that you agree
thak (1) You are not eligible for insurance if you have
reached )rmtr 65th birthday. (2) You are eligible for
disability gtsufance only ifyou are working hr~wa es



I4/ft
Total Cash Prhe (A through S)

2. Amounts Paid to Pubgc ONchh
A. Ucense Fees

B. Reghtmfion/Transfer/Mng Fees

C. California Tire Fees
Smog ADIT'camenI'L Fae

Tohd Ofncht Fees (A ttvough D)

3. Amount Paid to Insurance Companhs

(Total premiums from Statement of Insurance cdumn a+ b)

4. 0 Smog Ceruficatlon or C) Exem pthn Fee Paid to Stah

6. Subtotal (1 through 4)

6. Total Downpayment

A. Agreed Trade-In Value Yr "6 Make

, STAN 4"2 — Odom-
1!8 cI H H io / H b / m c i. ~ 5 vi 6

VIN

B. Less Prior Credit or Lease Bahnce

C. Net Trade-In (A less B) (indicate B a negative number)

D. Deferred Downpayment

E. Manufacture!'s Rebate 4!A
F. Oiher

G. Cash

Total Downpayment (C through G)

(Ifnsgslvs, uvsr uvo is bs 6 aniufsr Su amaml kus ihmmm as a

7. Amount Financed (5 less 6)

$ 28cSc!m 80 (1)

898.69 (A)
151. 88 (B)

8. 75
I"s. Is

),-,F75 „(2)

N/R

$ —,
.'"'"- (4)co; TA. uo

9875.85 (A)

8675.B5 (B)
1 II'.t'6 ' Ii

(C)
pi A

(p)
N I R

(E)

$
u/H
.i/ I"

IG)

$
I gd()'sg

6

POSNvs Mills!OA IIA8 1P stells) p T 7 7 4 g I
$

- '

SELISI ASSI LOAN

BUIBIBIAYBE SBRRED ID PIEDOE SEDBIIYRI THE NAN,AND

IBILBE OBUOIED FDR THE INSIAtLJIBIINIMSON BOIH IIIB
REIAILINSIAUSISALE CONIINCIANDINENAIL

Proceeds of Loan From:

Amount $
" A Finance Chaige $

T~S N>< ~,h N/A

installments of $
L'll

$

from this Loan Is shown in item 6D.

AUTO BROKER FEE DISCLOSURE
N this contract reflects the retail sale of a
new motor vehicle, the sale Is not subject
to a fae received by an autobroker from us
unless the following box Is checked:

Q Name of autobroker receiving faa, lf
applicablII.

SELLER'S RIGHTTO CANCEL I snd Co8uyer sign here, the provisions of the Sesei's Right to Cancel section on

the back giving the Seller the right il Seller is unable to assign thh contiad to a rinanchl inslitufion wa apply.

X X
Buyer ~~ 4 buyer

uisabITity instilancs. DISABIUTYINSURANCE MAY
NOT COVER CONDITIONS FOR WHICHYOUHAVE
SEEN A DOCTOR OR CHIROPRACTOR IN THE
LAST 6 MONTHS (Refer to 'Total Disabilities Not
Coveretrin your pomcy for dehih).
You want to buy the credit i

x
Date BuyifSgnahoe Age

X
Date CoBuyer Sgnahne Age

OPIIONAL GAP CONTRACT A gap conkad (dsht cancela-
Bon conksd) is not mquked to obhin credit and wil not be
pnwided unhss you sign bshw and agiee td pay the exka
charge. Ifyou choosetobuy a gap~ the charge le shown
h item 10 of the Ihmhafiim ofAinount Financeil See Vbur Oap
cimkad hr dehh on Bs terms and condiSomlt pmvides. It h
a perl oi thh conkacl

N/A N/A
Name of ct

Buyer Signs X

OPllONAL SERVICE CONTRACT(S) You want to
purchase the seivks contmct(s) written with the following
company(ies) brds term(s) shown behw for the chaige(s)
shown in item 1K,1I 1M, 1N, and/or 10.

Ii'SSAN SFC~JRTTY PLUS
1K Company

Term Mos. or Miles!'i/H

~4/ H ni/ H
1L Co

Term Mos. or Miles
N!R

1M Comparr

ii/H
1N Compariy!4/H Pi/ H
Term 'os. or Miles

loco~ N
"''A

N/8
Term 'os.~ 'iles
Buyer X

HOW THhPCOSfTRACT CAN BE CHANGED. This
contract contahs the entire agreement between you
and us rehting to this contract. Any change to the
contract must be in writing and th you and we
must sign it. No oral changes a lnding.

Buyer Sgns X

ISO g~A
!

I!I/ft
OPTION: 0 You pay no finance charge if the Amount Financed, item 7, is paid in full on or behre -: ', Year

'
. SELLER'6 INITIALS

!

THE MINISIUSS PUBUC UABILITYINSURANCE LBIIIITS PROVIDED IN LAW MUST BE NIET BY EVERY PERSON WHO PURCHASES A VEHICLE. IF YOU ARE UNSURE WHETHER OR
NOT YOUR CURRENT INSUAANCEPOUCY WILLCOVER YOUR NEWLYACQUIREDVEHICLE INTHE EVENT OF AN ACCIDENT YOU SHOULD CONTACTYOUR INSURANCE AGENT.

WARNING:
YOUR PRESENT POUCY MAY NOT COVER COLUMN DANIAGE OR MAY NOT PROVIDE FOA FULL REPLACENIENT COSTS FOR THE VEHIClE BEING PURCHASED. IF YOU DO

NOT HAVE Full COVERAGE, SUPPlSIIIENTAL COVERAGE FOR COLUSION DAMAGE MAY BE AVAILABLETO YOU MROUGH YOUR INSURANCE AGENT OR THROUGH THE SELUNG
DEALEIL HOWEVER, UNIESS OIHERWSE SPECIRED, THE COVERAGE YOU OBTAIN MAOUGH THE DEALER PROTECIS ONLY THE DEALER, USUALLY UP TO THE AMOUNT OF
THE UNPAID BAUUfCEREMAININGAFTEATHEVEHIClE HAS BEEN REPOSSESSED AND SOUL

FOR ADVICEON FULLCOVERA T PAOTECT YOU INTHE EVENT OF LOSS OR DAIISAGETO YOUR VEHICLE,YOU SHOULD CONTACTYOUR INSURANCE AGENT.
THE BUYER SHAllSIGNTO AC ETHAT HEISHE UNDERSTANDSTHESE PUBUC UABIUTYTERSISAND CONDITIONS.

SIS X X

psfollABnssua SiksfulsshhrsalshmfsssaNshshfektsw her I pr tahhvdfdshssis sile psfsf smsddssmhihmI alls IhtftsfmaiAssulfismsfafsPar Crag wlsas Bdm.'Mwslsssh psyle
pslsfsmuf dtsshIhlshftfdr whar tffshshhvNs, wlb 'tissdsslisfsfsmwlhmsles fssmsd dssmhI, twlrssd!sf le MwlestmtsdsstssL liesdsdptfsfslsmfhhsshslesmass
domhI, MwalsfwdlsdhstehlsL Etttflssstadhhs slBisaelr@ssfstdgssNhosgsdulltlhsdftphdhlsf fspswcssfiwtsss8shasdtsmhIwssf idwddshsslis Mw.

Buyer Signature X buyer Slgnabua X

Nofica to buyer: (1) Do not tflnlhh agreement before you read it or lf It cordalns any bhnk spaces to be filled In. (2) You are antltlsd to a completely filled
In copy of (his agreement p)You can prepay the fullamount dua under this agreement at any lima. (4) N you dahuif ln the performance of your obligations
under Ibis agreement, the tMhfclamaybe repossessed and you may'be subJect to suit and liabilityfor the unpaldindabfadftsss Bvldsncsdby this agreement.

If you have a comphht concsmlng Ns sah, you should try to resolve It wfih Ihs seller.
Complaints concemhg unhlr or deceplhe pradlces or methods by the seller may be relerred to the dly atlomey, the district athrney, or an bwesfigator for the Deparbnent
of Motor Vehldes, or any combhalhm thereat
After this conhad Is sfgmuL the seger may not Is finandng or payment hrms unless you agree In writing to the change. You do not have to agree to any change,
and It h anunhlr or decepIve pracSce hr Is a unilateral change.

Buyer Slgnahue X Co4fuyer Signature X

The Annual PerceAhge Rate may be negotiable with the Seller. The Seller may assign this contract
and retain its right to reive a part of the Finance Charge.

~ VIII~ ~ IPPP tA 'tIP %&%III IP R IP ~ IIIIPtII~ IVt IIIMI



(llneaadtat, erday sent an ete a and enan ate antntaa lass

7. Amount Financed (5 less 6)

SBLBIASSBIHI lOAN

BOTEN uaY BE IIEQltlnao TO PLEOSE SECBIOTY fon THE lOAN, AND

NLL BE OBUMIEOIIITHE inaratutenr Pavaarm on aoln TNS

NSTNL msriuutalr sALE conrnacr Ano THE LQQL

N/A
Ploceeds of Loan From:

Amount$ h'A FinanceCharge$
5/5 ~e h I<iA

O'
installments of $

'

from this Loan is shown in item BD.

~ as a tosmtre number nn Sna iia abgue)

p)t

AUTO BROKER FEE DISCLOSURE
lf this contract reflects the retail sale of a
new motor vehicle, the sale is not subject
to a fee received by an autobioker from us
unless the followingbox Is checked:

Q Name of autobroker recehring fee, if
appgcably

SELLER'S RIGHTTO CANCEL If and Coeuyer sign here, the p ovisions of the Seaeitg Right to Cancel section on

the back giving the Seller the light if Seller h unahh ta assign Ods contmct to a financadhsmunon willapply.

X X
Buyer Co-Buyer

Mos. or
1L Company,

td.' ig; H
Tenn

' „Mos. or Maes

1M
Compeller,iA NA

Term
' -- -- Mos.or 'aes

I'0l H~/H mr H
Term Mos. or Maes

Tem ~rA
M ~ ""A

hales

Buyer X

HOW THIPCOftfTRACT CAN BE CHANGED. This
contract contains the entire agreement between you
and us relating to this contracL Any change to the
contract must be in writing and th you and we
must sign it. No oral changes inding.

Buyer Signs X

Co4fuyer Sgns Q~~

> IHht!L~".t..

CUSTOMER/TRUTH IN LENDING COPY

!
OPTTON: 0 You pay no finance charge if the Amount Financed, item 7, is paid in hdl on or before , Year'. SELLERS INITIALS

!

THE ulNINUllllPUBUC UABIUTY INSURANCE UHNTS PROVIDED IN LAW IIIUST BE IIIIET BY EVEN PERSON WHO PURCHASES A VEHICLE IF YOU ARE UNSURE WHETHER OR
NOT YOUR CURRENT INSURANCE POUCY WILLCOVER YOUR NEWLYACQUIREDVEIOCLE gfTHE EVENT OF AN ACCIDENT,YOU SHOULD CONTACTYOUR INSURANCE AGENT.

WARNING:
YOUR PRESENT POUCY WIAY NOT COVER COLUSION DAMAGE OR MAY NOT PROVIDE FOR FULL REPLACEMENT COSTS FOR THE VEHICLE BEING PURCHASED. IF YOU DO

NOT HAVE FULL COVERAGE, SUPPLEMENTAL COVERAGE FOR COLUSION DtuNAGE NIAY BE AVAILABLETD YOU THROUGH YOUR INSURANCE AGENT OR THROUGH THE SELUNG
DEALER. HOWEVER, UNLESS OTHERYINSE SPECIRED, THE COVERAGE YOU OBTAIN THROUGH THE DEALER PROTECTS ONLY THE DEALER, USUALLY UP TO THE AMOUNT OF
THE UNPAIDBALANCERESUUNING AFTER THE VEHICLEHAS BEEN REPOSSESSED ANDSOUL

FOR ADVICEON FULLCOVERAG T LLPROTECT YOU INTHE EVENT OF LOSS OR DAMAGETOYOURVEHICLE,YOU SHOULD CONTACTYOUR INSURANCE AGENT.
THE BUYER SHALLSIGN TO AC E THAT HEISHE UNDERSTANDSTHESE PUBUC UABIUTYTERMS AND CONDITlONS.

S/S X ~~i'
yeya5Aywet Bgfr mted ca hhmsfm tom foeewthrla fsfrfdw whald yar tmdehvrtfdehmheatfsprftlmaaatdmaahtern S die thmtmbmatihiwmt Ramdes takeo Cmdtw(ass ihhara'Setlwnrissh pef fs
isyattamawf domh Shlskrfmtdwwhaeat tslahhshkh, wih 'tllssdadtmfotemmthaaelhmilsmammtdmrmhS,flmmlpefls MwtssaastmdmanL llsmfmftsfaf mwxmthlms ftmtsemmf
domh S, SdiwmllmhallsdmmxxshfmL Eastitasddsth fs aflliawascteaf ms'gmsd ttihomhd ailmtbsaMttrhdhtmf its RiwCaxgar LsmsgdwicadmaahS weay shad dstmmla Sdhl.

airier arananne x Co8uyw Slgatule X

Notice to buyer: (t) Do not ~gn this agreement before you read N or ff it contains any bhtnk spaces to be If(fed In. (2) You are enMed to a completely Slled
In copy of this agreement (3) You can prepay the fuffamount due under this agreement at any time. (4) Ifyou default ln the performance of your oblfgatlons
under this agreement, the vehlde maybe repossessed and youmay be subJect to suit and Rablgty for the unpaid Indebtednessevtdencedby this agreement.

Ifyou have a comphlnt concerning this side, you should try to resohle n wnh the seller.
Complaints concerning unhdr or decepnve practices or methods by the seller may be mhrred to the cuy attorney, the dhtrtct attorney, or an Imlesngator for the Department
of Motor Vehldes, or any combination thereof.
After this cantract Is signed, the seller mar not the Nnanchg or payment terms unless you agree In wriung to the change. You do not have to agree to any change,
and It Is an unhlr or deceptive pmcuce for the sell a unnatelal changgL

Buyer Slgnatum X Co48uyer Signature X

The Annua/ PerceAfage Rate may be negotiable with the Seller. The Seller may assign this contract
and retain its right to receive a part of the Finance Charge.:

THERE IS NO COOUNG4FF PERIOD UNLESS VOU OBTAINACONTRACT CANCELLA110NOP110N
CONFIRIII 1NT BEFORE YOU SIGNEp THI CONIRAI
WE Gt(YE IT TO YOU, ANP YOU WERE FREE TO TAKE IT

contlaclsfmpfy because youchange your mfnd,dedde (he vehfch coshho much, or whhyouhadeguNa tgfhrant vehlde. Atletyou AIIREI(IEW IT YOU ACOO~ggE ~T YOU H ~
Sign be(ant au nmy only CSIICSI ConhaCl WIIgm~ Of gte Sagaf Of fm IBgaf Causey Such Sa Hoeemuy CBtlfafnla ISW 088

REAp ROTH IpES OF THS CONTRACT ICLUpIGTHE
require 8 maier to offer a 24ry con(lad ameeffagon opgon anuaadvemdee WIa purchase prhe ofhas +anti(t(NI(), aubledh Ceibdn

@QITRATIONCU((NEON THE REYER$E QpE BEFOREshtutory cond!gona Thhcontlad cancegagon opgon does notapply to(he sahof a noeagonal vehNe, a motolcyde,aran
af(4dghtmymotar vehfdesubjecttofdenggcathn mhfmLSeagmvehfchconbactcanceHaaonopaonagleementfordah!IL

COSIPLHELY FILLEMICOPY WHEN YOUQGNEPZt .

Buyer Signature X ~&i 'ate Crneuyer Signature X Date
Co-Buyem and Other Owntttys A ~uyer is a person who is responsible for paying the entire debL An other oWner iS a pemon whose name is on the tine to the vehicle but
does nol have to pay the dsbL The other awner agrees to the secuifty interest in the vehide given to us in this conhacL

9 y'P
Qhsr Owner Signatule X Addmss

GUARANTY:To Induce us ta ssII the vshlds h Buyer, each pelaon who signs as a uarantor~ gualanteee the paymsnl of Ods mnkacL If Buyer fath ta pay any money owing
on thh coldlaCt, each Guamnaw musl pay a when asaNL Each Gualanhr willbe labia hr the tahf amount avdng even If oaisr psisons aho sign as ~, and even tf Buyer has a
mmplets defense to ualantor's demand tal reimbissemsnL Each Gualanhl agrees to be Ihble even ifwe*one or more of the folhwing: (1) alve the Buyer more time ta pav one or more
paymenhv, (2) give a ful or partial release to any olhel ualanlor, (3) release any secunly; (4) accept less from Oie Buyer Oan the total amount owing; or (5) Ihelwise react t a setlement
lelaang ta ods conkact or extend the mntmcL Each Guamntar acknowledges recept of a completed copy af ods mntraa and guaranty al the orna of sfgning.

ualantal walves salas al acceptance of Ms Guamnty, nalce ofam Buyer's nanftaymssL nxgpivtannaAcs, and default; and notices of ale amount eiing at any Ims, and of any demands upon ths Sayer.
I'g/A NiA N/A ",I.'A,

Guafalltof X Date Guanmtor X —9ah
Address 'khdd)tf

ri!~i i.ND tat SS~.'Il Ihl(;. .8 27 ZSII
Seller Signs . Date Title

QA/'ORMNO. SQCA-ARB ittet tntg us yteenna eaa,m

l

C 11 nn ld der r c p~


